
 

DEPARTMENTS: AREA CODE (707) 

ADMINISTRATION 4 2 1 - 7 3 0 0  �  PLANNING 4 2 1 - 7 3 3 5  �  BUILDING 4 2 1 - 7 3 1 0  �  FINANCE 4 2 1 - 7 3 2 0  

FIRE 4 2 5 - 9 1 3 3  �  RECREATION & COMMUNITY SERVICES 4 2 1 - 7 2 0 0  �  POLICE 4 2 1 - 7 3 7 3  �  PUBLIC WORKS 4 2 1 - 7 3 4 0  

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 4 2 1 - 7 3 0 9  FAX 4 2 1 - 7 3 6 6  

 

CITY COUNCIL 

Pedro “Pete” M. Sanchez, Mayor 

Mike Hudson, Mayor Pro-Tem 

Jane Day 

Sam Derting 

Michael A. Segala 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

First and Third Tuesday 

Every Month 
 

 

 

A G E N D A 

 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE 

SUISUN CITY COUNCIL,  

SUISUN CITY COUNCIL ACTING AS SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE 

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY, 

AND HOUSING AUTHORITY 

TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 7, 2012 

7:00 P.M. 
(or immediately following the Adjourned January 17, 2012 Meeting) 

SUISUN CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS -- 701 CIVIC CENTER BOULEVARD -- SUISUN CITY, CALIFORNIA 

(Next Ord. No. – 721) 
 (Next City Council Res. No. 2012 – 05) 

Next Suisun City Council Acting as Successor Agency Res. No. SA2012 – 04) 
 (Next Housing Authority Res. No. HA2012 – 02) 

ROLL CALL 

Council / Board Members 
Pledge of Allegiance 
Invocation 

PRESENTATIONS/APPOINTMENTS 
(Presentations, Awards, Proclamations, Appointments).      

1. Approving Appointment to the Parks and Recreation Commission - (one appointment for 
term expiring January 2013).     

PUBLIC COMMENT 
(Requests by citizens to discuss any matter under our jurisdiction other than an item posted on this 

agenda per California Government Code §54954.3 allowing 3 minutes to each speaker). 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST NOTIFICATION  
(Any items on this agenda that might be a conflict of interest to any Councilmembers / Boardmembers 

should be identified at this time.) 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
Consent calendar items requiring little or no discussion may be acted upon with one motion. 

2. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2012-___:  Authorizing the Police Chief to Accept and 
Administer the 2011 Safe Routes to School Public Safety Enforcement Grant Through the 
Solano Transportation Authority – (Dadisho). 



February 7, 2012 City Council / Successor Agency / Housing Authority Agenda Page 2 

 

 

City Council 

3. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2012-__:  Accepting the Hall Park Tot Lot as 
Completed and Authorizing the City Manager to Record the Notice of Completion for the 
Construction Contract on the City’s Behalf with Miracle Playsystems, Inc. for the Hall Park 
Tot Lot Project – (Kasperson). 

Joint City Council / Suisun City Council Acting as Successor Agency 

4. Council/Agency Accept the Investment Report for the Quarter Ending December 31, 2011 – 
(Anderson).   

5. Council/Agency Approval of the December 2011 Payroll Warrants in the amount of 
$836,973.86.  Council Approval of the December 2011 Payable Warrants in the amount of 
$1,286,524.86 and Agency Approval of the December 2011 Payable Warrants in the amount 
of $134,147.95 – (Finance).    

Joint City Council / Suisun City Council Acting as Successor Agency / Housing Authority 

6. Council/Agency/Commission Approval of the Minutes of the Regular and Special Meetings 
of the Suisun City Council, Agency Board and Housing Authority Board held on January 3, 
2012 – (Hobson).   

GENERAL BUSINESS 

City Council 

7. Mid-Year Fiscal Review – (Anderson/Joseph).  

a. Presentation of the FY 2011-12 Mid-Year Fiscal Review. 

b. Confirmation of Budget Priorities for FY 2012-13. 

c. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2012-__:  Adopting the 5th amendment to the 
Annual Appropriation Resolution No. 2011-62 to Appropriate Funds for Mid-Year 
Budget Adjustments Primarily Due to the State’s Dissolution of the Redevelopment 
Agency. 

8. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2012-___:  Authorizing the Recruitment of an 
Accountant, One Police Officer, and Two Reserve Police Officers – (Garben/Dadisho).   

9. Council Discussion and Direction Regarding Special Events – (Corey).  

PUBLIC HEARINGS:   

REPORTS:  (Informational items only.) 

10. City Manager/Executive Director/Staff 

11. Mayor/Council -Chair/Boardmembers 

CLOSED SESSION   

City Council   

Pursuant to California Government Code section 54950 the Suisun City Council will hold a Closed 
Session for the purpose of: 



February 7, 2012 City Council / Successor Agency / Housing Authority Agenda Page 3 

 

 

12. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL--ANTICIPATED LITIGATION     
Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(b): One 
potential case.  

CONVENE OPEN SESSION 

Announcement of Actions Taken, if any, in Closed Session. 

ADJOURNMENT 

A complete packet of information containing staff reports and exhibits related to each item for the open session of 
this meeting, and provided to the City Council, are available for public review at least 72 hours prior to a Council 
/Agency/Authority Meeting at Suisun City Hall 701 Civic Center Blvd., Suisun City.  Agenda related writings or 
documents provided to a majority of the Council/Board/Commissioners less than 72 hours prior to a 
Council/Agency/Authority meeting regarding any item on this agenda will be made available for public inspection 
during normal business hours.  An agenda packet is also located at the entrance to the Council Chambers during the 
meeting for public review.  The City may charge photocopying charges for requested copies of such documents. 
 

PLEASE NOTE: 
1. The City Council/Board hopes to conclude its public business by 11:00 P.M.  Ordinarily, no new items will be taken up after the 11:00 

P.M. cutoff and any items remaining will be agendized for the next meeting.  The agendas have been prepared with the hope that all items 
scheduled will be discussed within the time allowed. 

2. Suisun City is committed to providing full access to these proceedings; individuals with special needs may call 421-7300. 
3. Agendas are posted at least 72 hours in advance of regular meetings at: 

City Hall Fire Station Senior Center 
701 Civic Center Boulevard 621 Pintail Drive 318 Merganser Drive 



PREPARED BY: Ed Dadisho, Police Chief 

REVIEWED/APPROVED BY: Suzanne Bragdon, City Manager 

 

 

AGENDA TRANSMITTAL 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  February 7, 2012 

 

CITY AGENDA ITEM: Adoption of Resolution No. 2012-___:  Authorizing the Police Chief to 

Accept and Administer the 2011 Safe Routes to School Public Safety Enforcement Grant through 

the Solano Transportation Authority. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  The grant would provide $67,000 to support the extension of the Safe Routes 

to School Program (SR2S) for a period of one-year by retaining a full-time School Safety Traffic 

Officer (SR2S) within the Police Department.  There would be no cash or in-kind match required.  

 

BACKGROUND: The Safe Routes to School Program was started in Solano County in 2008. 

The Suisun City Police Department received a grant through the State of California to implement 

the program within the schools in Suisun City. In 2009, a non-sworn School Safety Traffic 

Officer (SSTO) was hired to implement the program for a period of two years.  

 

With the expiration of the existing grant, the Solano Transportation Authority announced a one-

year Public Safety Enforcement Grant to continue the Safe Routes to School Program. The 

Suisun City Police Department and the Fairfield Police Department applied for a joint-award. 

Suisun City was awarded funding to implement the educational component and Fairfield was 

awarded funding to implement the enforcement component.  

 

STAFF REPORT:  A successful Safe Routes to School (SR2S) program is a sustained effort 

that involves bringing the right mix of people together, identifying critical issues, and finding 

ways to improve walking and bicycling conditions.  SR2S programs can improve safety not just 

for children, but for a community of pedestrians and bicyclists. In Solano County, this program 

was launched in 2008 and has now expanded to include all schools in the county.  According to 

the National Center for Safe Routes to School Program, enforcement activities by Public Safety 

Agencies can help to change unsafe behaviors of drivers, bicyclists, and pedestrians and is a 

complementary strategy in any innovative SR2S program.  Furthermore, SR2S enforcement does 

not just involve police officers; many different community members must take part including 

students, parents, school personnel, and adult school crossing guards. 

 

The goals of the grant are to develop a countywide crossing guard training manual, develop a 

bicycle rodeo training video, continue existing SR2S programs in the schools and host 

educational SR2S programs at local community events.  The major deliverables are a crossing 

guard training DVD, a bicycle rodeo training DVD and a crossing guard training manual.  

 



The program would be implemented by the School Safety Traffic Officer, and the program would 

be entirely funded using this grant.  The SSTO would work with the local schools and other city 

and county agencies to continue the development and growth of the SR2S program. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2012-

___:  Authorizing the Police Chief to Accept and Administer the 2011 Safe Routes to School 

Public Safety Enforcement Grant through the Solano Transportation Authority. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 

1. Resolution No. 2012-___:  Authorizing the Police Chief to Accept and Administer the 

2011 Safe Routes to School Public Safety Enforcement Grant through the Solano 

Transportation Authority. 

 

2. Grant Application. 



RESOLUTION NO. 2012-____ 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY 

AUTHORIZING THE POLICE CHIEF TO ACCEPT AND ADMINISTER THE 2011 

SAFE ROUTES TO SCHOOL PUBLIC SAFETY ENFORCEMENT GRANT  

THROUGH THE SOLANO TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

 

WHEREAS, the Suisun City Police Department has been awarded funds through the 

2011 Safe Routes to School Public Safety Enforcement Grant through the Solano Transportation 

Authority (STA) in the amount of $67,000; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Safe Routes to School (SR2S) program was launched in Solano County 

in 2008 and is a sustained effort that involves bringing the right mix of people together, 

identifying critical issues, and finding ways to improve walking and bicycling conditions for 

children and other pedestrians; and 

 

WHEREAS, the funding for the original SR2S program provided by the State to the City 

of Suisun City has been exhausted and this grant is a means to continue the program in our local 

schools, which otherwise would be discontinued in the absence of this grant; and 

 

WHEREAS, the objectives of the grant are to develop a countywide crossing guard 

training curriculum, develop a countywide bicycle rodeo training curriculum, continue the 

existing SR2S in the local schools and host educational SR2S programs at local community 

events; and 

 

WHEREAS, the funds will support the retention of the School Safety Traffic Officer 

(SSTO), who was previously funded with a state SR2S grant, for a period of one-year; and  

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Suisun City recognizes the need and benefit 

to the community of participating in the Safe Routes to School Public Safety Enforcement Grant. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council hereby authorizes the 

Police Chief, or his designee, to execute those grant documents necessary to receive funding 

through and administer the 2011 Safe Routes to School Public Safety Enforcement Grant. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Suisun City at a regular 

meeting thereof held on the 7th day of February 2012 by the following vote: 

 

AYES: Councilmembers:    

NOES: Councilmembers:    

ABSENT: Councilmembers:    

ABSTAIN: Councilmembers:    

 

 

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said City this 7th day of February, 2012. 

 

 

 

  
   Linda Hobson, CMC 

 City Clerk 



The Fairfield Police Department 
and Suisun City Police Department  
as Joint Applicants 
 

Solano Transportation Authority 
Safe Routes to School (SR2S) Solano County 
 

Safe Routes to School 
Public Safety Enforcement 
Grant 
 

Proposal 

2011 

“Come walk and bike with us!” 



Safe Routes to School – Public Safety Enforcement Grant Proposal 
The Fairfield Police Department and Suisun City Police Department as Joint Applicants 

 

1 

PROJECT INFORMATION 

 

Project Title:  Solano County Safe Routes to School (SR2S) Enforcement 
Initiative 

Applicant: Fairfield Police Department 
1000 Webster Street 
Fairfield, CA 94533 
 
and 
 
Suisun City Police Department 
701 Civic Center Blvd 
Suisun City, CA 94585 
 
as Joint Applicants 

Project Manager: Mike Mitchell, Traffic Sergeant 
Fairfield Police Department 
707-428-7524 (office) 
707-422-5030 (fax) 
mmitchell@fairfield.ca.gov 

 Tim Mattos, Commander, Operations Division 
Suisun City Police Department 
707-421-7353 (office) 
707-422-8074 (fax) 
tmattos@suisun.com 

Other Contacts: Dean Patterson, Police Senior Management Analyst 
Fairfield Police Department 
707-428-7335 (office) 
707-422-5030 (fax) 
dpatterson@fairfield.ca.gov 
 
Frank Mihelich, Lieutenant 
Fairfield Police Department 
707-428-7343 (office) 
707-422-5030 (fax) 
fmihelich@fairfield.ca.gov 

  

 

mailto:mmitchell@fairfield.ca.gov
mailto:tmattos@suisun.com
mailto:dpatterson@fairfield.ca.gov
mailto:fmihelich@fairfield.ca.gov


Safe Routes to School – Public Safety Enforcement Grant Proposal 
The Fairfield Police Department and Suisun City Police Department as Joint Applicants 

 

2 

PROJECT NARRATIVE 
 

BACKGROUND & PROBLEM STATEMENT 

A successful Safe Routes to School (SR2S) program is a sustained effort that 

involves bringing the right mix of people together, identifying critical issues, and 

finding ways to improve walking and bicycling conditions. SR2S programs can 

improve safety not just for children, but for a community of pedestrians and 

bicyclists. In Solano County, this program was launched in 2008 and has now 

expanded to include all schools in the county. According to the National Center 

for Safe Routes to School Program, enforcement activities by Public Safety 

Agencies can help to change unsafe behaviors of drivers, bicyclists, and 

pedestrians and is a complementary strategy in any innovative SR2S program. 

Furthermore, SR2S enforcement does not just involve police officers; many 

different community members must take part including students, parents, school 

personnel, and adult school crossing guards. A collaborative “best practice” 

enforcement program shared by all Solano County Public Safety Agencies 

would significantly impact the success of the SR2S program in the county.   

 

NEED STATEMENT 

The California Department of Education states, “Thirty years ago, more than 60 

percent of all California children walked to school.” Walking or biking to school 

gives children a sense of freedom and responsibility, provides exercise, curbs 

childhood obesity rates, and provides children the opportunity to arrive at school 

alert, refreshed, and ready to start their day. Yet today, most California children 

are denied this experience; in fact, only 13 percent of California children walk or 

bike to school including those in Solano County. According to the Solano County 

Office of Education, the current K-12 enrollment in county public schools is 

65,300 of which approximately 8,500 walk or bike to school. Solano County’s 

SR2S program, implementing a comprehensive enforcement approach to make 

school routes safe, can positively influence a yearly increase in this number and 

greatly benefit the children that participate. Additionally, in 2009, 34 youth 

pedestrian collisions and 19 youth bicycling collisions occurred in Solano County 

according to the California Office of Traffic Safety. The most critical focus of 

developing Solano County’s Safe Routes to School (SR2S) Enforcement Initiative 

will be to continue to work to reduce or eliminate youth pedestrian injury and 

fatal collisions using all “best practice” methods available including increased 

enforcement, education, training, and implementing innovative enforcement 

strategies countywide.  



Safe Routes to School – Public Safety Enforcement Grant Proposal 
The Fairfield Police Department and Suisun City Police Department as Joint Applicants 

 

3 

PROGRAM DESCRIPTION  

The Fairfield Police Department and the Suisun City Police Department will 

collaboratively implement a SR2S program to satisfy the goals and objectives of 

the grant. The Fairfield Police Department will be the lead agency for the 

enforcement component and the Suisun City Police Department will be the lead 

agency for the educational component. The program will run for a year-and-a-

half period and involve a high degree of collaboration between all Solano County 

Public Safety Agencies and School Districts. The countywide slogan for the 

program will be, “Making Safe Routes to School Safer.”  

The Fairfield and Suisun City Police Departments already have in place 

aggressive and effective SR2S enforcement and educational programs and are 

centrally located within the county. This sets the stage for an effective 

implementation and successful delivery of the program. 

The Fairfield Police Department will partially fund (.35 FTE) a current traffic 

police officer in Fairfield with substantial knowledge and experience with SR2S 

enforcement activities. This position will be funded from July 2011 – June 2010. 

The Suisun City Police Department will fully fund the retention of a full-time 

School Safety Traffic Officer (SSTO), who is dedicated to SR2S efforts.  An 

existing state SR2S grant, which funds this position, will end in November 2011, 

at which time the SSTO will transfer to this grant. However, given that both 

grants are SR2S grants, the SSTO will be able to start working on deliverables for 

this grant immediately. 

METHODOLOGY 

In collaboration with other Solano County law enforcement agencies and school 

districts to implement a “best practice” program that can be replicated 

countywide, Fairfield Police and Suisun City Police will work closely together to 

effectively implement and meet Solano Transportation Authority’s specified goals 

and objectives of the enforcement program as follows: 

Countywide Crossing Guard Training 

We will work closely with the local jurisdictions and school districts within the 

county to develop and facilitate countywide crossing guard training. This includes 

building upon the crossing guard manual that is regularly reviewed and updated 

by the City’s Safe Passage “4E” Committee. The “best practice” crossing guard 

training manual will be available and distributed countywide. Electronic 



Safe Routes to School – Public Safety Enforcement Grant Proposal 
The Fairfield Police Department and Suisun City Police Department as Joint Applicants 

 

4 

distribution will be the preferred method and can easily be delivered by e-mail or 

CD.  

In order to support the training, we will produce a DVD training video and 

supporting documentation and skills assessment tests. We will enter into a 

community partnership with the Rodriguez High School and its award winning 

audio/video training program to film, edit and produce the DVD for countywide 

distribution. This partnership will give public school students pride and 

ownership in the SR2S enforcement program. 

Educational Public Safety Opportunities for Parents and Students 

We will work closely with STA, the schools and additional community service 

oriented businesses to promote, organize and conduct education opportunities 

related to the SR2S Enforcement Program. Our existing programs, such as the 

“Heels or Wheels” program, which encourages children to safely walk and bike to 

school as well as bicycle rodeos, will be continued under the grant. These 

programs are diverse and include in-class presentations, assembly presentations 

and morning announcements. In order to maximize our efforts, we will make use 

of STA’s assets including the bicycle rodeo trailer, bike fleet and safety marketing 

material. We will again partner with Rodriguez High School to produce an 

additional training DVD on “How to Organize and Conduct a Successful Bicycle 

Safety Rodeo” for countywide distribution. Input and collaboration from other 

agencies will enable this training DVD to be a dynamic training tool.  

Fairfield and Suisun City Police also conduct yearly educational safety training 

booths at highly attended events, such as the Fairfield Tomato Festival and Candy 

Festival and the Suisun City July 4th Celebration and Suisun City National Night 

Out Event. In addition, Fairfield will help organize and encourage other public 

safety agencies to conduct similar safety training events.  

Finally, we will develop a SR2S Enforcement Facebook Page will be created for 

the program and safety tips will be posted to the site on a weekly basis. With the 

popularity of Facebook in today’s youth, this will prove to be an exceptional 

safety training opportunity.  

Increased Enforcement for Traffic Related Offenses 

A recent random survey of Solano County public schools has revealed that a 

majority of county schools are experiencing problems during the school commute 

period with aggressive drivers. Speeding, the failure of motorists to yield to 

pedestrians in crosswalks, and failure to stop at stop-controlled intersections 



Safe Routes to School – Public Safety Enforcement Grant Proposal 
The Fairfield Police Department and Suisun City Police Department as Joint Applicants 

 

5 

around schools are the most highly reported violations. According to the 

California Office of Traffic Safety, an increase in the visibility of law enforcement 

during school pick-up and drop-off times has been shown to decrease traffic 

safety violations around schools and increase the care drivers take. We will work 

with school representatives to identify specific problem schools who are active 

participants in STA’s SR2S Program in Fairfield and Suisun City as well as other 

interested schools in the County. We will recommend and implement 

enforcement strategies to resolve the problems, including an increased police 

presence whenever possible. Once again, successful collaboration between school 

representatives and County law enforcement agencies will be essential to the 

success of this goal. In consideration of new and innovative enforcement 

strategies, benchmarking agencies outside of Solano County with pioneering 

SR2S enforcement strategies and then testing and implementing them here also 

has the potential to significantly enhance SR2S enforcement. 

Pilot New and Innovative Strategies 

Fairfield Police and Suisun City Police are committed to expanding upon the Safe 

Routes to School Program by developing new and innovative strategies.  Based 

upon the significant experiences of both agencies with regards to traffic safety, 

pedestrian safety and the SR2S program, we believe we are uniquely positioned 

to work collaboratively together and with other agencies in the county to provide 

new strategies by learning from the past. 

 

SCOPE OF WORK AND SCHEDULE 

The following section outlines the scope of work and estimated completion dates 
for each major action/task. 

1. Enforcement Strategies  Completion Date: November 2012 
 
We will work with school representatives to identify specific problem 
schools in Fairfield and Suisun City, notify responsible agencies and make 
recommendations. The Fairfield Traffic Officer will conduct directed 
enforcement at problem schools in Fairfield. Suisun City Police Officers 
will conduct directed enforcement at schools within Suisun City. 
Additionally, outreach will be made to all interested schools in the County 
and we will collaborate with local law enforcement agencies to provide 
best practice enforcement plans. 

 

 



Safe Routes to School – Public Safety Enforcement Grant Proposal 
The Fairfield Police Department and Suisun City Police Department as Joint Applicants 

 

6 

2. Crossing Guard Manual  Completion Date:  January 2012 
 
A “best practice” crossing guard manual will be developed through 
collaboration with key stakeholders.  

3. Crossing Guard Training DVD  Completion Date: June 2012 
 
A crossing guard training DVD will be developed and distributed to 
countywide to schools. The training DVD will serve as a supplement to the 
Crossing Guard Manual. A corresponding evaluation instrument will be 
developed for assessment of content retention. 

4. Facebook Page   Completion Date: August 2011  
 
A Safe Routes to School Enforcement page will be created on Facebook. An 
outreach effort to local enforcement agencies, schools and other relevant 
public agencies will be conducted to advertise the page. This page will be 
updated weekly with safety tips, event information and other pertinent 
information. 

5. Bicycle Rodeos   Completion Date:  November 2012 
 
Bicycle rodeos will be conducted on a quarterly basis at sites throughout 
Solano County utilizing the STA bicycle rodeo equipment and bicycle fleet. 
 

6. Bicycle Rodeo DVD   Completion Date: June 2012 
 
An instructional DVD on how to host a bicycle rodeo will be developed and 
distributed countywide. The DVD will be accompanied by electronic 
versions of any forms, certificates, rosters etc. necessary to conduct a 
bicycle rodeo. 

7. Educational Events   Completion Date: November 2012 
 
Educational events will be hosted throughout the project year at SR2S 
participating schools and at community events. 

 

LETTER OF INTEREST RESPONSE 

There were no questions posed by STA staff and the SR2S Advisory Committee as 
a result of its review of the Letters of Interest for this project by Suisun City Police 
or Fairfield Police. 

 



Safe Routes to School – Public Safety Enforcement Grant Proposal 
The Fairfield Police Department and Suisun City Police Department as Joint Applicants 

 

7 

EVALUATION METHODOLOGY 

We will work collaboratively with STA to develop survey instruments to collect 
standardized data to measure the effectiveness of the program. At a minimum, in 
the educational component, we will conduct pre and post training surveys to 
measure attitudes and knowledge as they relate to safe travel to and from school. 
Additionally, the School Safety Traffic Officer, who will serve as the Educational 
Coordinator, will be solicit feedback through verbal and written communication, 
including social media communication via the Facebook page we will develop. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Safe Routes to School – Public Safety Enforcement Grant Proposal 
The Fairfield Police Department and Suisun City Police Department as Joint Applicants 

 

8 

BUDGET AND BUDGET NARRATIVE 

INTRODUCTION 

The Fairfield Police Department and the Suisun City Police Department are 
jointly applying for a grant award of $100,000 through the Safe Routes to School 
Public Safety Enforcement Grant. The following table outlines the proposed 
allocation of grant funds through the program. 

SUMMARY OF ALLOCATION OF GRANT FUNDS 

SR2S Enforcement Program 

Agency Allocation 

City of Fairfield $33,000 

City of Suisun City $67,000 

 

Grand Total $100,000 

 

BUDGET 

The following sections outline the expenditures by agency for each budget area. 
All costs are best estimates with available information at the time. 

PERSONNEL COSTS 

City of Fairfield 

Position Computation Cost 

Traffic Officer $93,640 X .35 FTE $33,000 

Total for City of Fairfield $33,000 

City of Suisun City 

Position Computation Cost 

School Safety Traffic Officer $18.75 x 2080 hrs $39,000 

School Safety Officer Overtime $28.13 x 71 hrs  $2,000 

Total for Suisun City $41,000 

Total Personnel Costs for All Agencies $74,000 

 
FRINGE BENEFITS 

City of Suisun City 

Position Computation Cost 

School Safety Traffic Officer $39,000 x 44% $17,000 

Total for City of Suisun City $17,000 

Total Fringe Benefits Costs for All Agencies $17,000 

Total Personnel Costs & Fringe Benefits for All Agencies $91,000 

 
 
 
 



Safe Routes to School – Public Safety Enforcement Grant Proposal 
The Fairfield Police Department and Suisun City Police Department as Joint Applicants 

 

9 

EQUIPMENT COSTS 

Items costing $5,000 or more per unit and having a useful life of more than 2 years. 

None 

Total Equipment Costs for All Agencies $0 

 
SUPPLIES COSTS 

Expendable items costing less than $5,000 per unit. 

City of Suisun City 

Item Computation Cost 

Radio for SSTO 1 x $1,800 x 50% cost share 
w/Suisun 

$900 

Bicycle Helmets 50 x $20 $1,000 

Misc Supplies  $960 

CD/DVD Duplication & Supplies  $500 

Total for City of Suisun City $3,360 

Total Supplies Costs for All Agencies $3,360 

 
OTHER COSTS 

City of Suisun City 

Item Computation Cost 

Vehicle Lease for SSTO $500/mo x 12 months $5400 

SSTO Radio Subscriber Fee $20/month x 12 months $240 

Total for City of Suisun City $5,640 

Total Other Costs for All Agencies $5,640 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Safe Routes to School – Public Safety Enforcement Grant Proposal 
The Fairfield Police Department and Suisun City Police Department as Joint Applicants 

 

10 

BUDGET SUMMARY 

BUDGET SUMMARY 

Public Safety Enforcement Grant 

Category Amount 

Personnel $74,000 

Fringe Benefits $17,000 

Travel $0 

Equipment $0 

Supplies $3,360 

Construction $0 

Consultants/Contracts $0 

Other $5,640 

Total Programs Costs $ 

Indirect Costs $0 

Total Programs Costs $100,000 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Safe Routes to School – Public Safety Enforcement Grant Proposal 
The Fairfield Police Department and Suisun City Police Department as Joint Applicants 

 

11 

BUDGET NARRATIVE 

City of Fairfield       Total: $35,000 

Traffic Officer        $35,000 

This request will fund .35 FTE of an experienced Traffic Officer to implement the 
enforcement component of the SR2S program. Fairfield will pay the benefit costs 
associated with the Traffic Officer.  

 

Suisun City Police Department    Total: $66,000 

School Safety Traffic Officer      $64,540 

This request will fund a full-time School Safety Traffic Officer (SSTO) for one-
year along with supporting equipment. The SSTO will serve as the coordinator for 
the educational components of the grant and also conduct the project 
effectiveness evaluation. This request funds the costs associated with the 
continued leasing of a vehicle for use by the SSTO to travel from site to site.  
 
Personnel:         $41,000 
Benefits:         $17,000 
Supplies: 
 >Portable Radio (50% match)     $900 
Other:           
 >Vehicle Lease       $5400 
 >Radio Subscriber Fee      $240 

 
Bicycle Helmets        $1,000 

This request will purchase bicycle helmets for the SSTO to distribute at events 
and at schools throughout the county to children who need bicycle helmets but 
may have difficulty purchasing one. 

Miscellaneous Supplies       $960 

This request will provide funds to purchase miscellaneous supplies in support of 
the SSTO’s educational programs. 
 
CD/DVD Supplies        $500 

This request will fund the purchase of CDs and DVDs to support the distribution 
of the two training DVDs that will be developed as well as distribution of the 
crossing guard manual to schools and law enforcement agencies. 

 



PREPARED BY:   Nick Lozano, Associate Engineer 

REVIEWED/APPROVED BY:  Daniel Kasperson, Building & Public Works Director 

 Suzanne Bragdon, City Manager 

 

AGENDA TRANSMITTAL 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  February 7, 2012  

 

CITY AGENDA ITEM:  Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2012-___:  Accepting the Hall Park 

Tot Lot as Completed and Authorizing the City Manager to Record the Notice of Completion for 

the Construction Contract on the City’s Behalf with Miracle Playsystems, Inc. for the Hall Park Tot 

Lot Project. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  The final contract amount is the same as the original contract amount of 

$122,911.74.  There would be no additional fiscal impact. 

 

BACKGROUND:  On August 23, 2011, the City awarded the tot lot playground structure contract 

to Miracle Playsystems for the Hall Park Tot Lot project.  This project furnished the playground 

structure and installed the structure, rubber surfacing, associated storm drainage system, mow strip, 

benches and steel powder-coated fencing and gate to match the playground structure.  The location 

of this tot lot was coordinated with the library staff and the Fairfield-Suisun School District.   

 

The final contract amount includes no changes to the original contract amount.  The budget for the 

tot lot and other park improvements was funded through a contribution from The Salvation Army 

per the purchase agreement and with Park Development funds. 

 

STAFF REPORT:  The project has been completed to the City’s satisfaction and within the 

project schedule.  Additional work must be completed before the area can be opened to the public.  

This work will include a concrete sidewalk and landscape improvements.  This work was not 

included in the contract with Miracle Palysystems, and it will be accomplished by others. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  It is recommended that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2012-

___:  Accepting the Hall Park Tot Lot as Completed and Authorizing the City Manager to Record 

the Notice of Completion for the Construction Contract on the City’s Behalf with Miracle 

Playsystems, Inc. for the Hall Park Tot Project. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 

1.  Resolution No. 2012-___:  Accepting the Hall Park Tot Lot as Completed and Authorizing 

the City Manager to Record the Notice of Completion for the Construction Contract on the 

City’s Behalf with Miracle Playsystems, Inc. for the Hall Park Tot Lot Project. 



RESOLUTION NO. 2012 - ___ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY 

ACCEPTING THE HALL PARK TOT LOT AS COMPLETED AND AUTHORIZING 

THE CITY MANAGER TO RECORD THE NOTICE OF COMPLETION FOR THE 

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT ON THE CITY’S BEHALF WITH MIRACLE 

PLAYSYSTEMS, INC. FOR THE HALL PARK TOT LOT PROJECT 

 

 WHEREAS, on August 23, 2011, the Suisun City Council awarded a contract to Miracle 

Playsystems, Inc. for the Landscaping along Bikeway on Main Street project; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the contract include furnishing the playground structure and installing the 

playground structure, rubber surfacing, associated storm drainage system, mow strip, benches and 

steel powder coated fencing and gate to match the playground structure; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Miracle Playsystems, Inc. has completed all of the work under the contract for 

the Tot Lot at Hall Park Project. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Suisun 

City does hereby authorize the City Manager to take all necessary and appropriate actions to execute 

the final contract payment with Miracle Playsystems, Inc., execute the Notice of Completion on 

behalf of the City, and cause the Notice of Completion to be recorded with the Solano County 

Recorder’s Office. 

 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED at a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Suisun 

City duly held on Tuesday, the 7
th
 day of February, 2012 by the following vote: 

 

AYES: Councilmembers:    

NOES: Councilmembers:    

ABSENT: Councilmembers:    

ABSTAIN: Councilmembers:    

 

 WITNESS my hand and the seal of said City this 7
th
 day of February, 2012. 

 

   

 Linda Hobson, CMC 

 City Clerk 

 







 

M I N U T E S 

 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE 

SUISUN CITY COUNCIL, REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

AND HOUSING AUTHORITY 

TUESDAY, JANUARY 3, 2012 

7:00 P.M. 

SUISUN CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS -- 701 CIVIC CENTER BOULEVARD -- SUISUN CITY, CALIFORNIA 

ROLL CALL 

Mayor / Chairman Sanchez called the meeting to order at 7:00  PM with Council / Board 
Members Derting, Hudson, and Segala present. Council / Board Member Day was absent. 
Pledge of Allegiance was led by Council Member Derting. 
Invocation was given by City Manager Bragdon 

PRESENTATIONS/APPOINTMENTS - None 
(Presentations, Awards, Proclamations, Appointments).     

PUBLIC COMMENT 
(Requests by citizens to discuss any matter under our jurisdiction other than an item posted on this 

agenda per California Government Code §54954.3 allowing 3 minutes to each speaker). 

Richard Giddens spoke favorably regarding the State decision to eliminate redevelopment. 
 
George Guynn made comments regarding the elimination of redevelopment. 
 
Chuck Kingeter stated expressed concern about City Council minutes and payroll warrants and suggested 
the warrants be itemized. 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST NOTIFICATION - None 
(Any items on this agenda that might be a conflict of interest to any Councilmembers / Boardmembers 

should be identified at this time.) 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
Consent calendar items requiring little or no discussion may be acted upon with one motion. 

City Council 

1. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2012-01:  Authorizing the Re-Designation of the Solano 
Transportation Authority as the Abandoned Vehicle Abatement Program Service Authority 
for Solano County – (Dadisho) 

2. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2012-___:  Accepting the Hall Park Tot Lot as 
Completed and Authorizing the City Manager to Record the Notice of Completion for the 
Construction Contract on the City’s Behalf with Miracle Playsystems, Inc. for the Hall Park 
Tot Lot Project – (Kasperson).   

3. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2012-02:  Accepting the Repairs to the Ponds on the 
Lawler Falls Park Project as Completed and Authorizing the City Manager to Execute and 



January 3, 2012 City Council / Redevelopment Agency / Housing Authority Minutes Page 2 

 

 

Record the Notice of Completion for the Construction Contract on the City’s Behalf – 
(Kasperson).    

Joint City Council / Redevelopment Agency 

4. Assembly Bill 936 Forgiveness of Redevelopment Agency Loans – (Garben).   

a. Consider Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2012-03:  Regarding Forgiveness of Loans 
to the Suisun City Redevelopment Agency. 

b. Consider Agency Adoption of Resolution No. RA 2012-01:  Regarding Forgiveness of 
Loans to Public Bodies. 

5. Council/Agency Approval of the November 2011 Payroll Warrants inclusive in the amount 
of $733,429.80.  Council Approval of the November 2011 Payable Warrants inclusive in the 
amount of $1,210,285.71 and Agency Approval of the November 2011 Payable Warrants 
inclusive in the amount of $32,622.20 – (Finance).    

Joint City Council / Redevelopment Agency / Housing Authority  

6. Council/Agency/Commission Approval of the Minutes of the Regular and Special Meetings 
of the Suisun City Council, Redevelopment Agency Board and Housing Authority Board 
held on December 6, 2011  – (Hobson).   

Staff requested Item 2 be pulled from the Consent Calendar. 

George Guynn suggested the abandoned vehicle abatement should be voted on by the 
citizens. 

Richard Giddens expressed concern about the abandoned vehicles that have not been 
addressed for years throughout the City.  

George Guynn suggested the liabilities of the Redevelopment Agency be included in the staff 
report regarding Item 4. 

Richard Giddens commented that forgiveness of any debt was ridiculous. 

Chuck Kingeter expressed concern about when a citizen could view the City Council minutes 

Motioned by Council / Board Member Hudson and seconded by Council / Board 

Member Derting to approve Consent Calendar. Motion carried unanimously by the 

members present.  

GENERAL BUSINESS 

City Council 

7. Discussion and Direction:  Presentation from Brandis Tallman, LLC Regarding a Proposal to 
Refund the City’s CalPERS Side Fund and Direction to Staff – (Joseph).  

Jeff Land of Brandis Tallman LLC made a presentation regarding the City’s options for 
refinancing the unfunded liability for the City’s pension benefits.     

 George Guynn suggested cash was better than borrowing, suggested the City seek 
competitive bidding and suggested the City not rush into this refinancing.   



January 3, 2012 City Council / Redevelopment Agency / Housing Authority Minutes Page 3 

 

 

Chuck Kingeter requested clarification of the unfunded liability and how did the amount get 
to such a large amount.  

Staff was directed to look into other financing and scheduling another presentation to the 
Mayor’s Conference and possibly the Northern League of California Cities. 

PUBLIC HEARINGS:  None 

REPORTS:  (Informational items only.) 

8. City Manager/Executive Director/Staff 

a. Report on Supreme Court Decision on AB 26 and AB 27.  

City Manager Bragdon explained the process, what actions would need to be taken, successor 
agency, oversight board and the timeline for the actions.   

Council directed staff that the City  will be the successor 

9. Mayor/Council -Chair/Boardmembers 

Council Member Segala and Council Member Hudson complimented staff for a wonderful 
Christmas event.  

Mayor Sanchez stated he had officiated two weddings. 

ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business, Mayor Sanchez adjourned the City Council meeting at 8:32 PM. 

 

_________________________ 
Linda Hobson, CMC 
City Clerk 
 
 

























______________________________________________________________________________ 

PREPARED BY: Mark Joseph, Financial Services Manager 

Ed Dadisho, Police Chief 

REVIEWED/APPROVED BY: Suzanne Bragdon, City Manager 

AGENDA TRANSMITTAL 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  February 7, 2012 

 

CITY AGENDA ITEM:  Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2012 - __:  Authorizing the 

Recruitment of an Accountant, One Police Officer, and Two Reserve Police Officers.  

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  The incumbent in the Accountant position will retire effective March 30, 

2012.  The position is currently budgeted at the top step of the pay range.  Thus, upon approval 

of the City Council, the hiring of a new Accountant would likely result in a savings of about 

$15,000 to $20,000 this fiscal year as a result of the temporary vacancy and the hiring of a 

replacement, who would start at a lower pay step. 

Likewise, the incumbent in the Police Officer position will be accepting a new job offer with 

another agency anticipated to be in March 1, 2012.  The position is currently budgeted at the top 

step of the pay range.  Upon approval of the Council, the hiring of a new police officer could 

result in a savings of about $25,000 when hiring a replacement at a lower step. 

Contingent upon approval by the Council, the Police Department would recruit and hire two 

Reserve Police Officers, who would work for no compensation.  The only costs would be 

equipment and a four-month training program, which would cost approximately $2,000 for each 

officer ($1,600 for training and $400 for equipment).  The other cost associated with the hiring of 

the two officers would be the normal Worker’s Compensation liability that the City has for all its 

employees in the event an employee is injured.   

 

 

BACKGROUND:  With the adoption of the FY 2011-12 Annual Budget the City Council 

established a policy that requires staff to seek the Council’s approval for the recruitment of 

candidates to fill vacant positions.   

 

STAFF REPORT:   

Accountant 

The Accountant position plays a critical role in the operation of the Administrative Services 

Department.  The position is responsible for the bank reconciliation, payroll reconciliation, 

monthly close-outs, inter-program reallocations, assisting with the annual audit, assisting with 

grant accounting/reporting, and ensuring separation of duties.       

The incumbent is expected to perform professional accounting work, recording, and reporting of 

financial transactions; to ensure budgeting control for assigned funds and City Departments; to 

review accounts payable, payroll and other fiscal records; and to prepare financial report 

statements and analyses.   

 



The Administrative Services Department is a relatively small department, yet it is required to 

perform a full range of accounting functions of much larger city organizations.  If we do not 

maintain an adequate level of professional accounting support, we could risk problems with 

disallowed costs for grants or qualified opinions in our outside audits.  Thus, staff is 

recommending the City Council authorize the recruitment and hiring of an Accountant. 

Police Officer 

Officer Mike Shephard recently received a conditional job offer for the BART Police 

Department, and is expected to leave on March 1, 2012.  At the beginning of this fiscal year, the 

Police Department voluntarily froze one authorized position to help with the fiscal issues the 

City is facing.  Due to the fiscal issues the City is facing with the RDA, the City has frozen two 

more Police Officer positions for a total of three sworn positions.    

The Police Chief has established minimum staffing levels in the General Orders which is one 

sergeant and two officers on every shift.  With the Department having three frozen positions and 

one anticipated vacancy, officers will be assigned mandatory Overtime to fill those vacancies.  

Our Department is currently working the 3/12 schedule.  Any forced Overtime could have an 

impact on officer fatigue and morale.  Although Overtime saves the City money by not having to 

pay PERS benefits for an additional officer, the savings is estimated at only 7% above what we 

would pay an officer to work Overtime. 

Another alternative that Council may consider to not filling the vacancy is to have a reduction of 

services by eliminating the School Resources Officer assignment and bringing that officer back 

into the patrol assignment.  However, the Department may lose some or all of the $42,000 

funding from the Fairfield Suisun Unified School District.  Staff is requesting the authority to 

establish a Police Officer eligibility list, and for the City Manager to determine when to fill the 

vacancy based on fiscal constraints and consultation with the Police Chief. 

Reserve Police Officers 

Reserve Police Officers bring many benefits to the City by virtue of their working in a uniformed 

assignment for no compensation.  The Department would only recruit those officers who have 

the required training from POST and have been issued a Basic POST Certificate.  The officers 

would have to go through a Field Training Officer (FTO) program for 16 weeks (four months), 

but due to their commitments at their other jobs (if any), they normally would work one or two 

days a week, prolonging their completion of the FTO by several weeks.  Nevertheless, the 

Department would have the benefit of having an extra uniformed officer on the streets with a 

training officer during the FTO period.  After completing the FTO, the Reserve Police Officer 

can go out on his/her own to cover a beat.  The Reserve Police Officers are required to work a 

minimum of two shifts per Deployment Period.  

 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  It is recommended that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2012 - 

__:  Authorizing the Recruitment of an Accountant, One Police Officer, and Two Reserve Police 

Officers. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  

1. Resolution No. 2012 - __:  Authorizing the Recruitment of an Accountant, One Police 

Officer, and Two Reserve Police Officers. 



 

RESOLUTION NO. 2012 - ___ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY 

AUTHORIZING THE RECRUITMENT OF AN ACCOUNTANT,  

ONE POLICE OFFICER, AND TWO RESERVE POLICE OFFICERS 

 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Suisun City Council has instituted a selective hiring 

freeze; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council must approve new recruitments and authorize the 

hiring of new employees; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Police Department will have one Police Officer vacancy 

anticipated beginning March 1, 2012; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Police Department has established minimum staffing levels within 

its General Orders of one sergeant and two officers for each shift; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Department will have to use Overtime to backfill the vacancies 

if unfilled, causing an impact on officer fatigue; and 

 

WHEREAS, the newly hired position would enable the Police Department to 

keep the current level of services provided to the community; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Reserve Police Officers are beneficial to the Police Department 

in bolstering the uniformed presence; and 

 

WHEREAS, the costs associated with the hiring of Reserve Police Officers are 

minimal; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Accountant position is essential to the operation of the City’s 

Administrative Services Department; and 

 

WHEREAS, the current budget contemplates the Accountant position is filled, 

and the hiring of an Accountant would likely result in a modest savings relative to the 

adopted budget for FY 2011-12. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council hereby 

authorizes the recruitment of an Accountant in the Administrative Services Department, 

and two Reserve Police Officers in the Police Department.   

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Manager is hereby authorized to 

establish a Police Officer eligibility list, and the City Manager authorized to determine 

when to fill the vacancy based on fiscal constraints and consultation with the Police 

Chief. 

 

 



854903-1 2 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Suisun City at a 

regular meeting thereof held on the 7th day of February 2012 by the following vote: 

 

AYES: Councilmembers:    

NOES: Councilmembers:    

ABSENT: Councilmembers:    

ABSTAIN: Councilmembers:    

 

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said City this 7th day of February 2012. 

 

 

  
   Linda Hobson, CMC 

 City Clerk 



PREPARED BY:   Scott Corey, Marketing Manager 

REVIEWED/APPROVED BY:  Jason Garben, Economic Development Director 

 Suzanne Bragdon, City Manager 

 

AGENDA TRANSMITTAL 
 

MEETING DATE:  February 7, 2012  

 

CITY AGENDA ITEM:  Council Discussion and Direction Regarding Special Events 
 

FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 

STAFF REPORT:   In November, Mayor Sanchez appointed Councilmembers Day and Derting 

to sit as an Ad Hoc Committee on Special Events. The Ad Hoc Committee invited a number of 

community members to participate in developing a strategy to preserve special events, the funding 

for which was cut from the FY2011-12 budget due to the State elimination of redevelopment. 

 

Through a number of meetings, the Ad Hoc Committee focused on preserving two major events – 

Independence Day Spectacular (July 4, 2012) and Christmas at the Waterfront.  While holding the 

full schedule of events was discussed, it was deemed to be an impractical option for 2012 given the 

significant funding challenges.  Priority was placed on the July 4
th

 celebration, because it draws the 

most people to the City and the need to move quickly for sufficient fund-raising. 

 

The work of the Ad Hoc Committee has come to a point where City Council discussion and 

direction is required on two major questions: 

 

 Has the Ad Hoc Committee secured sufficient pledges of financial support to move 

forward with the Independence Day Spectacular for July 4, 2012? 

 

 Would the City Council like to pursue an ordinance change legalizing the sale of safe ‘n’ 

sane fireworks within City limits as a means to raise funds to support future events? 

 

July 4, 2012 

 

The Ad Hoc Committee identified two challenges with regard to continuing the Independence 

Day Spectacular: 

 

 Securing sufficient seed money to enter fireworks and entertainment contracts for the 

July 4, 2012, event, then raising the full balance of the event cost. 

 

 Securing an ongoing funding source to support the event in future years. 

 

The July 4
th

 celebration costs between $80,000 and $100,000 annually to produce.  Through 

personal outreach to about 20 regional community-minded businesses and organizations, 

members of the Ad Hoc Committee have secured pledges of financial support of about $25,000 

to date, including a $10,000 matching challenge grant from PG&E.  Several companies and other 

organizations are considering requests for support but have not yet responded.  An updated 

pledge tally will be presented at the Council meeting. 

 



 
 

Two residents with experience in sponsorship programs assisted in producing a funding and 

outreach plan to guide the fund-raising for the events with the ultimate goal of fully funding the 

July 4, 2012 event.  Included in the funding plan is an overall fund-raising effort involving many 

local non-profit groups and residents who may be able to donate small amounts, but that could 

aggregate to a significant amount.  With no City funds available to pay for the event, the fund-

raising effort would need to collect at least $80,000 for the event.  The vast majority of those 

funds would need to be collected before the event itself to ensure the City could meet its 

contractual obligations.  Elements of the event could be scaled to the amount of funding 

available; for example, producing a fireworks show but not having the same level of vendor 

participation and bands as previous years, or shortening the entertainment leading up to the 

fireworks show. 

 

The Ad Hoc Committee would like Council direction on several courses of action related to the 

July 4, 2012 event: 

 

 Is the pledge of about $25,000 in financial support sufficient to allow the 2012 event to 

move forward at this point? 

 

 Would the Council prefer to wait another two weeks to allow additional pledges to come 

forward before making a final decision on the 2012 event? 

 

Fireworks Sales 

 

While the short-term funding challenge for the 2012 Independence Day Spectacular is being 

addressed with a sponsorship drive, the Ad Hoc Committee was uncomfortable relying solely on 

annual sponsorships to underwrite events in future years.  The Ad Hoc Committee preferred to 

identify a more stable source of funding that could be augmented by ongoing sponsorship 

relationships.  To that end, staff investigated the option of legalizing the sale and use of safe ‘n’ 

sane fireworks within City limits. 

 

In recent years, cities across California have legalized fireworks sales to raise funds for 

community needs, augment enforcement of laws banning illegal fireworks and reduce the use of 

dangerous illegal fireworks within their communities. While varying on some details, the 

ordinances all include a fairly consistent operational scenario: 

 

 One or two fireworks manufacturers are recruited to provide the sales material within the 

community. 

 The companies help locate fireworks stand locations that are likely to prove profitable. 

 The City advertises for and selects local non-profit organizations interested in operating 

the stands as a fund-raiser for their organization. 

 The fireworks company works with the selected non-profits on proper handling of the 

inventory, sales procedures and provides the fireworks for sale on consignment. 

 The City sets the hours of operation. 

 The City may require a surcharge on the sales for a specific City purpose, and/or require 

non-profits to turn over a set percentage of the sales proceeds to the City for a specific 

City purpose. 



 
 

 State law proscribes the sales of legal fireworks to June 28 through July 6 only. 

 

Given the typical scenarios from other communities, it is anticipated legal fireworks sales in 

Suisun City would support approximately four stand locations, and gross about $200,000.  

Funding the City would secure from these sales would be segregated for events purposes only, 

and serve as the seed money for future events.  Additional sponsorships or profit-oriented aspects 

of the events could be instituted.  

 

To allow legal fireworks sales in Suisun City in 2012, time is of the essence.  Several model 

ordinances exist to facilitate the adoption of a local ordinance.  To proceed, the Ad Hoc 

Committee would like Council direction regarding: 

 

 The Council’s desire to allow legal fireworks sales in Suisun City. 

 

 Any specific situations or aspects of such sales the Council would want to see addressed 

in an ordinance legalizing such sales. For example, some non-profits could be given 

selection priority (e.g. school-based, youth-oriented, etc.), or the City may want to 

proscribe areas were even legal fireworks would not be allowed, such as City parks. 

 

The Council’s guidance will guide staff in drafting an ordinance that will be returned to the 

Council for further consideration at a future date. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  It is recommended that the City Council discuss options related to the 

continuation of special events and provide direction on how to proceed. 

 




